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CONDITION

The small, one story, cottage v with gothic revival ornament has exterior walls
of unusal ‘masonry construction, extending up to the attic floor. The end
walls in the low pitched gable, the roof and the attic dormers are all of
wood. An ell of the same masonry, covered by a low roof extends east from
the main wing. The attached wood shed at the rear of the house, and the
glazed porch on the south of the ell are later replacements of earlier appen-
dages to the house.

topped by a wood arch inset with glass, is centered in the ‘front wall and is
symmetrically flanked on either side by a pair of windows. In the roof, cen-
tered above each wirdow is a small dormer. Two identical dormers occur on
the rear slope of the roof back to back with those facing the front. Window
openings in masonry walls are spanned by heavy, undecorated wood lintels and
the double hung wood sash have the six over six glass lights common to the
period.

The most elaborate exterior decoration is lavished on the gables, dormers and|
main entrance. In the gable ends, a small rectangular window is surrounded
byfusticulated wood siding within a large round-headed trefoil arch outlined

denticulated molding. The window is a later replacement of a smaller qua-
trefoil window. Carved bargeboards, similar to those remaining at the build-

wood on the dormer sides is now covered with asphalt roofing material. Fragi
multicusped wood trim surrounds the outer edge of the glass in the arch above
the front door. The building is otherwise plain.

The front textured walls have within recent years been covered with a white
coating to prevent spalling of the mortar, and the original wood shlngles are
covered with several layers of composition roofing.

Immediately inside the main entrance is a small vestibule from which doors
once opened to the left and right into two equal sized rooms. The doorway to
the north room has been removed and sealed, and a flat arch has replaced the
door to the south room. The vestibule opens directly east into a closet con-
taining a small steep curved stairway to the unfinished attic. The compara-
tively intricate and delicate molding around the deeply set windows and the
doors of the principal rooms are said to have been made in Lakeland mills.
The inside face of the exterior masonry walls is lined with vertical wood
furring strips, wood lath and plaster. A kitchen, back parlor, and small
bedroom which is now converted into a' bathroom are housed in the rear wing.
There is a cellar under that wing only.

Hardwood floors have replaced the original wide pine floor boards in all area
but the attic floor

The long dimension of the main wing faces the street to the west. The doorwaly,

ing gable have disappearedfrom the dormer gables and the original rusticulated
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The house is significant as ore of the few examples in Minnesota of a type
of masonry construction used in ancient north European buildings. The one
foot thick exterior walls are made of relatively small, unsplit boulders

covered almost entirely with troweled mortar. The use of masonry for a

residence in the St. Croix Valley was particularly rare as lumber milling
was the principal industry of Lakelaneland the other river communities at
the time of its construction in 1858, The house was built for his own use

by Mr. John T. Cprgpé.

Mr. Cyphers lived in the building for only several years after its comple-
tion. OSince then extensive exterior alterations may have been discouraged
by the massive walls. Except for the period of 1887 to 1921 during which

The William Johnsons who owned the building from 1942 to early 1970,howeve
having much respect for the quality and character of the house, did much t
preserve the rapidly deteriorating structure. Its present owner is planni
a careful restoration.

it was occupied by Mrs. Mary V. Caldwell, the building has had many tenantb.




by Roger Kennedy, p. hh.

Minnesota Hist~_z Vol. 38, No. 8, Dec. 1963 "Houses of the St.Croix Valley"

Kennedy, Roger, Minnesota Houses, Minneapolis 1967 Dillon Press pp. 167-168
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na- -
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in-the National Register and certify that it has been
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forth by the National Park Service.
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